#### NEW FOREST NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY

# MINUTES OF PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING

HELD ON TUESDAY 16 JANUARY 2024 AT 9:30 AM IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, LYMINGTON TOWN HALL, AVENUE ROAD, LYMINGTON SO41 9ZG.

# Attending:

#### Members:

Gordon Bailey (Chair)
Mary Davies
Gavin Parker
Caroline Rackham
Joe Reilly
Ann Sevier
Michael Thierry
Steve Trow (Deputy Chair)

### Officers:

Steve Avery Executive Director Strategy and Planning

Rosalind Alderman Solicitor and Monitoring Officer
David Stone Corporate Services Manager
Natalie Walter Principal Planning Officer

Carly Cochrane Planning Officer

Vicki Gibbon Members Services Administrator

## 111 Apologies for Absence

111.1 An apology for absence was received from Brice Stratford.

# 112 Declarations of Interest

112.1 None.

#### 113 Minutes

113.1 **RESOLVED:** That the minutes of the meeting held on 19 December 2023 be approved as a true record.

Voting: none voting against

### 114 Chair's Announcements

114.1 There were no announcements on this occasion.

## 115 Planning Applications for Committee Decision (Paper PC 443/24)

115.1 Members gave detailed consideration to the individual planning applications contained within the report.

**RESOLVED:** That the planning applications listed below be determined as shown in respect of each application and, in accordance with the Authority's policies and procedures, formal notice of the decisions to be sent to the applicants forthwith.

REPORT ITEM 1			
Application No.	22/00498/FULL		
Details	Land East of New Inn Road, Bartley SO40 2LR - 10no. new dwellings; relocated vehicular and pedestrian access: associated parking and landscaping (AMENDED PLANS)		
Public Participants	Martin Roberts (For) John Goodwin (Against) Steve Penfold (Against) Cllr Sherri Johnstone (Copythorne Parish Council)		
Comments	Cllr Derek Tipp (NFDC)  Due to a split decision by committee members the Chair had the casting vote, therefore the application was subsequently granted subject to the prior completion of a Section 106 agreement.		
Decision	Subject to the prior completion of a Section 106 legal agreement, the Executive Director of Strategy and Planning be authorised to grant planning permission subject to conditions		
Conditions	The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.		
	Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.		
	2. Development shall only be carried out in accordance with		
	2842-APLB-XX-00-DR-A-1000 Rev P02, 2842-APLB-XX-00-DR-A-1002 Rev P02, 2842-APLB-XX-00-DR-A-1105 Rev P17, 2842-APLB-XX-00-DR-A-1107 Rev P04, 2842-APLB-XX-00-DR-A-2000 Rev P07, 2842-APLB-XX-01-DR-A-2001 Rev P07, 2842-APLB-XX-02-DR-A-2002 Rev P05, 2842-APLB-CT-00-DR-A-2100 Rev P07, 2842-APLB-XX-XX-DR-A-3010 Rev P05, 2842-APLB-XX-XX-DR-A-3012 Rev P06, 2842-APLB-XX-XX-DR-A-3013 Rev P06, 14390_S1, 20254-01a, 20254-01b, LP01.		
	No alterations to the approved development shall be made unless otherwise agreed in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.		
	Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the building in accordance with Policies SP16, SP17, DP18 and DP2 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016- 2036 (August 2019).		
	3. The ten residential units hereby approved shall be used solely for the purposes of affordable housing for rent as defined in Annex 2 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2023).		
	Reason: The dwellings are only justified on the basis that it is necessary to provide housing to meet a locally identified need within the settlement of Copythorne, in accordance with Policy SP28 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan		

2016 - 2036 (August 2019).

4. No development shall take place until the proposed slab levels in relationship to the existing ground levels set to an agreed datum shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.

Development shall only take place in accordance with those details which have been approved.

Reason: To ensure that the development takes place in an appropriate way in accordance with Policy DP2 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).

 No development shall take place above slab level until samples or exact details of the facing and roofing materials have been submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.

Development shall only be carried out in accordance with the details approved.

Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the building in accordance with Policy DP2 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).

6. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the arrangements for parking and turning within its curtilage have been implemented.

These areas shall be kept available for their intended purposes at all times.

Reason: To ensure adequate parking provision is made in the interest of highway safety and to comply with Policy DP2 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019) and Section 9 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

7. All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details, plan no. LP01. The works shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner.

Any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size or species, unless the National Park Authority gives written consent to any variation.

Reason: To ensure the appearance and setting of the

development is satisfactory and to comply with Policy DP2 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).

8. Prior to the commencement of development ecological mitigation for the Solent and New Forest Special Protection Areas, Special Areas of Conservation and Ramsar sites shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority. The ecological mitigation may take the form of a planning obligation which secures financial contributions in accordance with the Authority's Habitat Mitigation Scheme and the Solent (SRMP) Explanatory Note.

Reason: To safeguard sites of international ecological importance in accordance with Policies SP5 and SP6 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019), the Authority's Habitat Mitigation Scheme and the SRMP.

9. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the National Park Authority, development shall only take place in accordance with the recommendations for ecological mitigation and enhancement which are set out in the Ecological Impact Assessment (November 2022) hereby approved. The specified measures shall be implemented and retained at the site in perpetuity.

Reason: To safeguard protected species in accordance with Policies DP2 and SP6 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).

10. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) England Order 2015 (or any re-enactment of that Order) no extension (or alterations) otherwise approved by Classes A, B or C of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order, garage or other outbuilding otherwise approved by Class E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order, or means of enclosure otherwise approved by Class A of Part 2 of Schedule 2 to the Order, shall be erected or carried out without express planning permission first having been granted.

Reason: To ensure the dwellings remains of a size which is appropriate to their location within the countryside, to ensure an acceptable appearance of the development, and to comply with Policies DP35 and DP36 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).

11. The outbuildings the subject of this permission shall only be used for purposes incidental to the dwelling on the site and shall not be used for habitable accommodation such as kitchens, living rooms and bedrooms.

Reason: To protect the character and appearance of the

countryside in accordance with Policies DP36 and DP37 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).

No external lighting shall be installed on the site unless details
of such proposals have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.

Reason: To protect the amenities of the area in accordance with Policies DP2 and SP15 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).

13. No first floor windows other than those hereby approved shall be inserted into the units unless express planning permission has first been granted.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the adjoining neighbouring properties in accordance with Policy DP2 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).

14. No development, demolition or site clearance shall take place until the arrangements to be taken for the protection of trees and hedges on the site (as identified for protection in the approved plans), have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The agreed arrangements shall be carried-out in full prior to any activity taking place and shall remain in-situ for the duration of the development.

Reason: To safeguard trees and natural features which are important to the visual amenities of the area, in accordance with Policies DP2 and SP6 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016- 2036 (August 2019).

- 15. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until:
  - a) A water efficiency calculation in accordance with the Government's National Calculation Methodology for assessing water efficiency in new dwellings has been undertaken which demonstrates that no more than 110 litres of water per person per day shall be consumed within the development, and this calculation has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority;
  - b) A mitigation package addressing the additional nutrient input arising from the development has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Such mitigation package shall address all of the additional nutrient load imposed on protected European sites by the development when fully occupied and shall allow the Local Planning Authority to ascertain on the basis of the best available scientific evidence that such additional nutrient loading will not

have an adverse effect on the integrity of the protected European sites, having regard to the conservation objectives for those sites; and

c) All measures forming part of that mitigation package have been provided to the Local Planning Authority.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with and subject to the above details.

Reason: There is existing evidence of high levels of nitrogen and phosphorus in the water environment with evidence of eutrophication at some European designated nature conservation sites in the Solent catchment. To ensure that the proposal may proceed as sustainable development, there is a duty upon the Local Planning Authority to ensure that sufficient mitigation is provided against any impacts which might arise upon the designated sites. In coming to this decision, the Authority has had regard to Regulation 63 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 and Policy SP5 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan (2016 - 2036).

- 16. No development shall take place, (including any works of demolition), until a Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the National Park Authority. The approved statement shall include scaled drawings illustrating the provision for
  - (a) A programme of and phasing of demolition (if any) and construction work;
  - (b) The provision of long term facilities for contractor parking;
  - (c) The arrangements for deliveries associated with all construction works:
  - (d) Methods and phasing of construction works;
  - (e) Access and egress for plant and machinery;
  - (f) Protection of pedestrian routes during construction;
  - (g) Location of temporary site buildings, compounds, construction material, and plant storage areas.

Works shall only take place in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with Policy DP2 of the New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016-2036 (August 2019).

- 17. No development shall begin until a detailed surface water drainage scheme for the site, based on the principles within the approved drainage strategy, has been submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted details should include:
  - a. A technical summary highlighting any changes to the design

from that within the approved Flood Risk Assessment.

- b. Detailed drainage plans to include type, layout and dimensions of drainage features including references to link to the drainage calculations.
- c. Evidence to show how the surface water system (including land drain) will be protected against groundwater ingress.
- d. Exceedence plans demonstrating the flow paths and areas of ponding in the event of blockages or storms exceeding design criteria.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development can be adequately drained and to ensure that there is no flood risk on or off site resulting from the proposed development.

18. Details for the long term maintenance arrangements for the surface water drainage system shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the first occupation of any of the dwellings. The submitted details shall include confirmation of maintenance responsibilities for all elements including the boundary ditch and maintenance schedules for each drainage feature type and ownership within the site boundary.

Reason: To ensure that the surface water drainage arrangements are secured and adequately maintained in the interests of preventing unneccesary flood risk within or outside of the site.

19. All dwellings to be provided shall comprise dwellings of maximum total internal habitable floor space of 100 square metres.

Reason: To meet the identified local housing need for smaller dwellings and to accord with Policy SP21 of the New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016-36 (August 2019)

20. No part of the development shall commence until such time as the highway works shown in principle on the submitted drawings have been approved and agreed through a Section 278 Design Check.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with Policy DP2 of the New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016-2036 (August 2019).

Voting

5:4 (Chair had casting vote)

REPORT ITEM 2			
Application No.	23/00442/FULL		
Details	Sheepwash Cottage, Norley Wood Road, East End, Lymington, SO41 5SW - Side extension (AMENDED PLANS)		
Public Participants	Steven Peters (Agent) Cllr Mike Urwin (East Boldre Parish Council)		
Decision	Planning consent granted subject to conditions		
Conditions	1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.		
	Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.		
	Development shall only be carried out in accordance with the following plans and documents:		
	<ul> <li>Section, DWG No.: 533-23-8 Rev A</li> <li>Proposed Elevations, DWG No.: 533-23-6 Rev B</li> <li>Proposed Floor Plan, DWG No.: 533-22-5 Rev A</li> <li>Location Plan, DWG No: 533-22-1</li> <li>LHB Ecology, Prelimary Roost Assessment, Version: Final</li> <li>Heritage Assessment, dated June 2022.</li> </ul>		
	No alterations to the approved development shall be made unless otherwise agreed in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.		
	Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the building in accordance with Policies SP16, SP17, DP18 and DP2 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016- 2036 (August 2019).		
	3. No development shall take place above slab level until samples or exact details of the facing (timber cladding), brick plinth and roofing materials have been submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.		
	Development shall only be carried out in accordance with the details approved.		
	Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the building in accordance with Policy DP2 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).		
	4. The metal work associated with the horizontal sliding shutters and rainwater goods shall be either cast iron or painted black metal.		
	Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the development in accordance with Policies SP16, SP17, DP18		

and DP2 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016- 2036 (August 2019).

5. No development shall take place above slab level until samples or exact details of the proposed doors and windows at 1:10 section and 1:20 elevation together with joinery details, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.

Development shall only be carried out in accordance with the details approved.

Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the building in accordance with Policy DP2 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).

6. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the National Park Authority, development shall only take place in accordance with the recommendations for ecological mitigation and enhancement which are set out in the ecological report hereby approved. The specified measures shall be implemented and retained at the site in perpetuity.

Reason: To safeguard protected species in accordance with Policies DP2 and SP6 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).

7. All materials, machinery and any resultant waste materials or spoil shall be stored within the red line application site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason: In the interests of protecting the New Forest Site of Special Scientific Interest in accordance with Policy SP6 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).

8. Prior to commencement of development, a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.

Development shall take place in accordance with the approved CEMP, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.

Reason: To safeguard protected species and in accordance with Policies DP2, SP5 and SP6 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016- 2036 (August 2019)

 No external lighting shall be installed on the site unless details of such proposals have been submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.

	Reason: To protect the amenities of the area in accordance with Policies DP2 and SP15 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).  Informative(s):
	1. All bats and their roosts are fully protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended by the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000) and are further protected under Regulation 41 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010. Should any bats or evidence of bats be found prior to or during development, work must stop immediately and Natural England contacted for further advice. This is a legal requirement under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and applies to whoever carries out the work. All contractors on site should be made aware of this requirement and given the relevant contact number for Natural England, which is 0300 060 3900.
Voting	7:0, 1 abstention

REPORT ITEM 3				
Application No.	23/00502/LBC			
Details	Sheepwash Cottage, Norley Wood Road, East End, Lymington, SO41 5SW - Side extension (Application for Listed Building Consent) (AMENDED PLANS)			
Decision	Planning consent granted subject to conditions			
Conditions	The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.			
	Reason: To comply with Section 18 of the Town & Country Planning (Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas Act) 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.			
	Development shall only be carried out in accordance with the following plans and documents:			
	<ul> <li>Section, DWG No.: 533-23-8 Rev A</li> <li>Proposed Elevations, DWG No.: 533-23-6 Rev B</li> <li>Proposed Floor Plan, DWG No.: 533-22-5 Rev A</li> <li>Location Plan, DWG No: 533-22-1</li> <li>LHB Ecology, Prelimary Roost Assessment, Version: Final</li> <li>Heritage Assessment, dated June 2022.</li> </ul>			
	No alterations to the approved development shall be made unless otherwise agreed in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.			

Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the building in accordance with Policies SP16, SP17, DP18 and DP2 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016- 2036 (August 2019).

3. No development shall take place above slab level until samples or exact details of the facing (timber cladding), brick plinth and roofing materials have been submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.

Development shall only be carried out in accordance with the details approved.

Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the building in accordance with Policy DP2 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).

4. The metal work associated with the horizontal sliding shutters and rainwater goods shall be either cast iron or painted black metal.

Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the development in accordance with Policies SP16, SP17, DP18 and DP2 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016- 2036 (August 2019).

5. No development shall take place above slab level until samples or exact details of the proposed doors and windows at 1:10 section and 1:20 elevation together with joinery details, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.

Development shall only be carried out in accordance with the details approved.

Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the building in accordance with Policy DP2 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).

6. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the National Park Authority, development shall only take place in accordance with the recommendations for ecological mitigation and enhancement which are set out in the ecological report hereby approved. The specified measures shall be implemented and retained at the site in perpetuity.

Reason: To safeguard protected species in accordance with Policies DP2 and SP6 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).

7. All materials, machinery and any resultant waste materials or spoil shall be stored within the red line application site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason: In the interests of protecting the New Forest Site of Special Scientific Interest in accordance with Policy SP6 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).  8. Prior to commencement of development, a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.  Development shall take place in accordance with the approved CEMP, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.  Reason: To safeguard protected species and in accordance with Policies DP2, SP5 and SP6 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019)  9. No external lighting shall be installed on the site unless details of such proposals have been submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.  Reason: To protect the amenities of the area in accordance with Policies DP2 and SP15 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).  Informative(s):  1. All bats and their roosts are fully protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended by the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000) and are further protected under Regulation 41 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010. Should any bats or evidence of bats be found prior to or during development, work must stop immediately and Natural England contacted for further advice. This is a legal requirement under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and applies to whoever carries out the work. All contractors on site should be made aware of this requirement and given the relevant contact number for Natural England, which is 0300 060 3900.			
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.  Development shall take place in accordance with the approved CEMP, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.  Reason: To safeguard protected species and in accordance with Policies DP2, SP5 and SP6 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016- 2036 (August 2019)  9. No external lighting shall be installed on the site unless details of such proposals have been submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.  Reason: To protect the amenities of the area in accordance with Policies DP2 and SP15 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).  Informative(s):  1. All bats and their roosts are fully protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended by the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000) and are further protected under Regulation 41 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010. Should any bats or evidence of bats be found prior to or during development, work must stop immediately and Natural England contacted for further advice. This is a legal requirement under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and applies to whoever carries out the work. All contractors on site should be made aware of this requirement and given the relevant contact number for Natural England, which is 0300 060 3900.			Special Scientific Interest in accordance with Policy SP6 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036
approved CEMP, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.  Reason: To safeguard protected species and in accordance with Policies DP2, SP5 and SP6 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016- 2036 (August 2019)  9. No external lighting shall be installed on the site unless details of such proposals have been submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.  Reason: To protect the amenities of the area in accordance with Policies DP2 and SP15 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).  Informative(s):  1. All bats and their roosts are fully protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended by the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000) and are further protected under Regulation 41 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010. Should any bats or evidence of bats be found prior to or during development, work must stop immediately and Natural England contacted for further advice. This is a legal requirement under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and applies to whoever carries out the work. All contractors on site should be made aware of this requirement and given the relevant contact number for Natural England, which is 0300 060 3900.		8.	Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park
with Policies DP2, SP5 and SP6 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016- 2036 (August 2019)  9. No external lighting shall be installed on the site unless details of such proposals have been submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.  Reason: To protect the amenities of the area in accordance with Policies DP2 and SP15 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).  Informative(s):  1. All bats and their roosts are fully protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended by the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000) and are further protected under Regulation 41 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010. Should any bats or evidence of bats be found prior to or during development, work must stop immediately and Natural England contacted for further advice. This is a legal requirement under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and applies to whoever carries out the work. All contractors on site should be made aware of this requirement and given the relevant contact number for Natural England, which is 0300 060 3900.			approved CEMP, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
of such proposals have been submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.  Reason: To protect the amenities of the area in accordance with Policies DP2 and SP15 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).  Informative(s):  1. All bats and their roosts are fully protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended by the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000) and are further protected under Regulation 41 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010. Should any bats or evidence of bats be found prior to or during development, work must stop immediately and Natural England contacted for further advice. This is a legal requirement under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and applies to whoever carries out the work. All contractors on site should be made aware of this requirement and given the relevant contact number for Natural England, which is 0300 060 3900.			with Policies DP2, SP5 and SP6 of the adopted New Forest
with Policies DP2 and SP15 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).  Informative(s):  1. All bats and their roosts are fully protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended by the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000) and are further protected under Regulation 41 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010. Should any bats or evidence of bats be found prior to or during development, work must stop immediately and Natural England contacted for further advice. This is a legal requirement under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and applies to whoever carries out the work. All contractors on site should be made aware of this requirement and given the relevant contact number for Natural England, which is 0300 060 3900.		9.	of such proposals have been submitted to and approved in
1. All bats and their roosts are fully protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended by the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000) and are further protected under Regulation 41 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010. Should any bats or evidence of bats be found prior to or during development, work must stop immediately and Natural England contacted for further advice. This is a legal requirement under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and applies to whoever carries out the work. All contractors on site should be made aware of this requirement and given the relevant contact number for Natural England, which is 0300 060 3900.			with Policies DP2 and SP15 of the adopted New Forest
and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended by the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000) and are further protected under Regulation 41 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010. Should any bats or evidence of bats be found prior to or during development, work must stop immediately and Natural England contacted for further advice. This is a legal requirement under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and applies to whoever carries out the work. All contractors on site should be made aware of this requirement and given the relevant contact number for Natural England, which is 0300 060 3900.		Info	rmative(s):
Voting 7:0, 1 abstention		1.	and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended by the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000) and are further protected under Regulation 41 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010. Should any bats or evidence of bats be found prior to or during development, work must stop immediately and Natural England contacted for further advice. This is a legal requirement under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and applies to whoever carries out the work. All contractors on site should be made aware of this requirement and given the relevant contact number for Natural
	Voting	7:0, 1	abstention

REPORT ITEM 4		
Application No.	23/00916/FULL	
Details	White Cottage, 23 Garden Road, Burley, Ringwood BH24 4EA - Outbuilding; demolition of existing outbuilding	
Public Participants	Rachel Hicks (For) Cllr Robert Clarke (Burley Parish Council)	

Decision	Planning consent granted subject to conditions	ning consent granted subject to conditions	
Conditions	<ol> <li>The development hereby permitted shall be begun before t expiration of three years from the date of this permission.</li> </ol>	he	
	Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Count Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planni and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.		
	2. Development shall only be carried out in accordance with		
	Drawing numbers: 01 Rev H, 02 Rev D. Amended Location, Block & Site Plans; Proposed Plans & Elevations (Garage), DWG No. 01, Revision H		
	No alterations to the approved development shall be made unless otherwise agreed in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.		
	Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the buildi in accordance with Policies SP16, SP17, DP18 and DP2 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016- 20 (August 2019).	f	
	<ol> <li>The building the subject of this permission shall only be use for purposes incidental to the dwelling on the site and shall not be used for habitable accommodation such as kitchens living rooms and bedrooms.</li> </ol>		
	Reason: To protect the character and appearance of the countryside in accordance with Policies DP36 and DP37 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).	:	
	<ol> <li>No development shall take place above slab level until samples or exact details of the facing and roofing materials have been submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.</li> </ol>		
	Development shall only be carried out in accordance with the details approved.	he	
	Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the buildi in accordance with Policy DP2 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).	ng	
	<ol> <li>The privacy screen attached to the external staircase show on drawing number 01 Rev H shall be retained and maintained at a height of 1.75 metres.</li> </ol>	'n	
	Reason: To ensure the appearance and setting of the development is satisfactory and to safeguard the privacy of the adjoining neighbouring properties and to comply with Policy DP2 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local		

Plan 2016- 2036 (August 2019).

6. All materials, machinery and any resultant waste materials or spoil shall be stored within the red line application site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason: In the interests of protecting the New Forest Site of Special Scientific Interest in accordance with Policy SP6 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).

 No external lighting shall be installed on the site unless details of such proposals have been submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.

Reason: To protect the amenities of the area in accordance with Policies DP2 and SP15 of the adopted New Forest National Park Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (August 2019).

8. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) England Order 2015 (or any re-enactment of that Order) no garage or other outbuilding (including alterations) otherwise approved by Class E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order shall be erected or carried out without express planning permission first having been granted.

Reason: With regards to the spatial context of the application site, it is considered necessary to remove permitted development rights for outbuildings to ensure the plot is not overdeveloped, to preserve the character and appearance of the Conservation Area and non-designated heritage asset and protect neighbouring amenity in accordance with Local Plan policies DP2, SP16, SP17, DP18, and DP37 of the Local Plan (adopted August 2019), Section 12, 15 and 16 of the NPPF.

## Informative(s):

1. All bats and their roosts are fully protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended by the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000) and are further protected under Regulation 41 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010. Should any bats or evidence of bats be found prior to or during development, work must stop immediately and Natural England contacted for further advice. This is a legal requirement under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and applies to whoever carries out the work. All contractors on site should be made aware of this requirement and given the relevant contact number for Natural England, which is 0300 060 3900.

Voting

Unanimous

116 Planning Appeal Decisions (PC 444/24	116	Planning	Appeal	<b>Decisions</b>	(PC	444/24
------------------------------------------	-----	----------	--------	------------------	-----	--------

- 116.1 Steve Avery, Executive Director reported one Planning Appeal during the period of which had been dismissed.
- 117 Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent.
- 117.1 There were no urgent items.
- 118 Date of next meeting
- 118.1 The next meeting is scheduled for Tuesday 20 February 2024, to be held in the Council Chamber, Lymington Town Hall, Avenue Road, Lymington SO41 9ZG.

The meeting ended at 11:35 pm.	
	Date
Chair	